

Resource Mobilization Information Digest N° 211

July 2013

Climate Financing by Japan

Contents

U Reporting	. 4
. Measures Concerning New and Additional Financial Resources	. 4
2. Assistance to Developing Countries Particularly Vulnerable to Adverse Effects of Climate Change	.5
3. Assistance through Bilateral and Regional Frameworks and Multilateral Channels	. 6
3.1 Bilateral Assistance	. 6
Initiatives by Japan	. 6
Specific Assistance Measures	.9
3.2 Assistance through Regional Frameworks	12
3.3 Assistance through Multilateral Channels	14
Cool Earth Partnership (contributions through international organizations)	14
Climate Investment Funds (CIF)	14
Climate Change Countermeasures Assistance through the PHRD Fund	15
l. Measures Related to Transfer of Technology	15
4.1 Government Measures for the Promotion, Facilitation and Financing of the Transfer of Technology	15
4.2 Government Support Measures to Develop and Enhance the Capabilities and Technologies of Developing Countries	18
4.3 Prevention of Acid Rain	19
4.4 Prevention of Desertification	20

5. Promoting International Cooperation in the Private Sector	20
6. Considerations in Undertaking International Cooperative Projects	21
2012 Reporting	23
1. Overview	23
2. Objective of Japan's Active Efforts including Fast-Start Finance	23
3. Contents of Japan's Fast-Start Finance implemented as of 29 February 2012	24
(1) Mitigation(other than REDD+): USD 6.69 billion	24
(2) REDD+: USD 578 million	25
(3)Adaptation: USD 1.16 billion	25
(4)Mitigation and Adaptation: USD 1.20 billion	25
4. Features of Japan's Fast-Start Finance	25
(1) Various types of assistance in a wide range of areas	25
(2) Grant Aid prioritizing the area of adaptation	26
(3) Assistance focusing on vulnerable countries	26
(4) Use of private finance	27
5. Chanel and access for Japan's Fast-Start Finance	27
6. Tangible examples of Japan's Fast-Start Finance	27
(1)Grant Aid in bilateral cooperation	27
(2) Technical Assistance in bilateral cooperation	28
(3) Cooperation with international organization	29
(4) Loan support in bilateral cooperation	30
(5) Other Official Flow, including co-funding with private sector	31
2013 Reporting	
1. Overview	
Objective of Japan's Active Efforts including Fast-Start Finance	

3. Contents of Japan's Fast-Start Finance implemented as of December 2012	33
(1) Mitigation: USD 9.99 billion	33
(2) Adaptation: USD 1.37 billion	34
(3) Mitigation and Adaptation: USD 2.10 billion	34
4. Features of Japan's Fast-Start Finance	34
(1) Various types of assistance in a wide range of areas	34
(2) Grant-based assistance prioritizing the area of adaptation	35
(3) Assistance focusing on vulnerable countries	35
5. Use of private finance	36
6. Chanel and access for Japan's Fast-Start Finance	36
7. Tangible examples of Japan's Fast-Start Finance	37
(1) Grant Aid in bilateral cooperation	37
(2) Loan support in bilateral cooperation	38
(3) Technical Assistance in bilateral cooperation	39
(4) Cooperation with international organization	40
(5) Other Official Flow, including co-funding with private sector	40

2010 Reporting¹

In August 2003, the Cabinet adopted Japan's Official Development Assistance Charter (the ODA Charter), which spells out the philosophy and principles of Japan's official development assistance. One of the main priorities addressed by the ODA is global issues, including environmental problems. The charter states that, as a principle of ODA implementation, "environmental conservation and development should be pursued in tandem." Japan's Medium-Term Policy on ODA, announced in February2005, also makes global issues, including environmental problems, a priority issue that must be addressed. In this way the Government of Japan is trying to realize sustainable development on a global scale by supporting the self-ownership of developing countries.

Japan has communicated concrete proposals to the world through initiatives of the prime minister, including Cool Earth 50 (May 2007) and Cool Earth Promotion Program (January 2008, Davos Summit). Cool Earth 50 expresses intent to provide wide assistance for developing nations that aspire to control greenhouse gas emissions while achieving economic growth. The initiative asserts that assistance will be provided such as for cutting greenhouse gas emissions, conserving forests, countermeasures in areas vulnerable to the impacts of warming, including rises in sea levels and drought, and the promotion of using clean energies, while utilizing Japan's technology and experience and paying thorough consideration to the circumstances of developing nations.

In addition, in order to implement tangible measures for realizing Cool Earth 50, in January 2008, Japan constructed Cool Earth Partnerships with developing countries. Under the Cool Earth Promotion Program, Japan announced that it would actively cooperate on efforts for cutting emissions (including energy-saving efforts), extend assistance to developing countries that are seriously damaged from climate change, and strengthen solidarity with developing countries while cutting greenhouse gas emissions on a global-scale.

At the United Nations Summit on Climate Change on September 2009, Prime Minister Yukio Hatoyama voiced that vast amount of financial resources would be required to resolve the climate change problem, in particular to support adaptive measures in vulnerable developing nations and island states. The prime minister thereupon announced that Japan is prepared to provide more financial and technical assistance than in the past, in accordance with the progress of the international negotiations. In addition, the Prime Minister expressed that developed countries must contribute through substantial, new and additional public and private financing and other principles, and these undertakings were proposed under the title of the Hatoyama Initiative.

1. Measures Concerning New and Additional Financial Resources

Pursuant to Article 4.3 of the Convention

¹ Japan (2010). Japan's Fifth National Communication under the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change, January. 2010, 463 pp.

Cooperation to the Global Environment Facility (GEF)

Japan contributed US\$410 million (total funds equaling US\$2.02 billion) to the GEF during Phase I (1994-1998, GEF-1), US\$410 million (total funds equaling US\$2.75 billion) during Phase II (1998-2002, GEF-2), and US\$420 million (total funds equaling US\$3 billion) during Phase III (2002-2006, GEF-3). It is currently Phase IV (2006-2010, GEF-4) and US\$310 million (total funds equaling US\$3.13 billion) have been contributed to date.

Cooperation to IPCC

Japan has provided the IPCC with CHF180,000 annually since 1997. Furthermore, it has handled the organization of technical support for the inventory task force that was established in 1999 and has funded its operational costs (2007: ¥114.448 million; 2008: ¥150.113 million). In addition, Japan has contributed to IPCC personnel, including Takahiko Hiraishi, who is the chair of the IPCC Task Force on National Greenhouse Gas Inventories, as well as three head coordinating writers, 21 head writers, and five referee editors who participated in drafting the Fourth Assessment Report, which was completed and released in 2007.

2. Assistance to Developing Countries Particularly Vulnerable to Adverse Effects of Climate Change

Contributions to the GEF Trust Fund

Japan is one of the largest donors to the GEF Trust Fund which implements capacity building in the adaptation sector in the form of projects commissioned to international organizations, such as the UNDP, with 1.17 billion in SDR payment base until the present (from the pilot phase that began in July 1991 until the end of November 2009).

Contributions to the Least Developed Countries Fund

The Least Developed Countries Fund supports such efforts as the preparation and implementation of National Adaptation Programmes of Action (NAPA) by least developed countries. Japan contributed US\$250,000 to this fund in March 2007.

Cooperation for the Adaptation Fund

Japan contributed the clerical expenses (US\$13,093 in 2008) of the Adaptation Fund as a grant until 2009, when the Adaptation Fund's carbon credits will become available for sale. In addition, Japan is making personnel contributions. The director of the Research and Information Office at the Ministry of the Environment has served as a board member of the Adaptation Fund since 2008.

3. Assistance through Bilateral and Regional Frameworks and Multilateral Channels

3.1 Bilateral Assistance

Initiatives by Japan

The Hatoyama Initiative

At the United Nations Summit on Climate Change on September 2009, Prime Minister Yukio Hatoyama voiced that vast amount of financial resources would be required to resolve the climate change problem, in particular to support adaptive measures in vulnerable developing nations and island states. The Prime Minister thereupon announced that Japan is prepared to provide more financial and technical assistance than in the past, in accordance with the progress of the international negotiations.. In addition, in regards to assistance to developing nations the Prime Minister expressed that 1) the developed countries, including Japan, must contribute through substantial, new and additional public and private financing. 2) we must develop rules that will facilitate international recognition of developing countries' emissions reductions, in particular those achieved through financial assistance, in a measurable, reportable and verifiable manner. 3) on assistance to developing countries, consideration should be given to innovative mechanisms to be implemented in a predictable manner. And an international system should be established under the auspices of the UN climate change regime. This system should facilitate one-stop provision of information on and matching of available bilateral and multilateral financing, while securing transparency and effective utilization of assistance. 4)Japan proposes to establish a framework to promote the transfer of low-carbon technologies which ensures the protection of intellectual property rights.. These undertakings were proposed under the title of the Hatoyama Initiative, and the Prime Minister addressed that Japan will exert every effort for the success of Copenhagen, in the course of formulating this initiative

Cool Earth Partnership (overview)

In January 2008, Japan utilized roughly US\$10 billion in funds to construct Cool Earth Partnerships with developing countries that work to contribute to stabilizing the climate while achieving both emission reductions and economic growth. Japan then announced that it would provide assistance in the climate change sector, and will fund roughly ¥250 billion over a five-year period beginning in 2008 through grant aid, such as Grant Aid for Environmental Programs, which was newly established in 2008 as a countermeasure for climate change. Moreover, yen loans as countermeasures against climate change were created in order to implement programs and projects that combat global warming in various countries, whereupon Japan is to provide approximately ¥500 billion in funds at a special interest rate over a five-year period from 2008. Japan is also to provide a maximum of roughly ¥500 billion over a five-year period from 2008 to greenhouse gas cutting projects in developing nations through investments and warranties provided by the Facility for Asia Cooperation and Environment (FACE) of the Japan Bank for International Cooperation (JBIC), trade insurance provided by the Nippon Export and Investment Insurance (NEXI), and the New Energy and Industrial Technology Development Organization (NEDO), as well as funds called on from the private sector.

These schemes are mobilized in unison to provide technical assistance for forest conservation and disaster prevention projects as well as for drafting disaster prevention and adaptation plans in response to climate change, among other initiatives. Other utilities include providing village development assistance including electrification via clean energies such as sunlight, and providing assistance for countermeasures against disasters such as drought and flooding.

One specific example is the provision of the Climate Change Program Loan to assist climate change countermeasures in Indonesia via policy dialogue. Other examples include the construction of a highly efficient power plant, construction of new power distribution facilities, and measures for the reduction of power distribution loss via revamping efforts in Bangladesh, as well as Grant Aid for Environment Programs to provide Kenya with flood countermeasures and for assistance to emergency water-supply measures in various African countries. In addition, the Cool Earth Seminar was launched, where capacity building was implemented for the environmental ministries and other bodies in approximately 30 developing countries.

The Kyoto Initiative

Japan launched the Kyoto Initiative in December 1997 at the 3rd Session of the Conference of the Parties to the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change. Under this initiative, Japan provides assistance for developing nations related to countermeasures against global warming, while focusing on the three pillars of (1) cooperation in capacity development (3,000 people in five years), (2) ODA loans at the most concessional conditions (interest rate of 0.75 percent, repayment period of 40 years), and (3) exploitation and transfer of Japanese technology and know-how.

As of present, approximately 8,200 people have been trained in the five years beginning in FY 1998 through such measures as training in Japan, training in third-party countries, dispatching specialists, and dispatching the Japan Overseas Cooperation Volunteers. In addition, 123 ODA loans projects (worth for approximately ¥1.61 trillion) with concessional conditions related to global warming countermeasures were implemented between December 1997 and December 2008.

Japan's Action on Adaptation: Building Capacity and Ownership

With the critical importance of sustainable development in developing countries in mind, the government of Japan will provide comprehensive assistance on adaptation measures in these countries by taking advantage of Japan's knowledge and expertise in the adaptation sector, focusing mainly on the following three pillars.

- Assistance through Promotion of Development Projects
- Capacity Building for Government Officials in Developing Countries
- Promotion of Climate Change Research and Personnel Development in Modeling Activities

Assistance for Developing Countries and Measures for Adaptation in the Areas of National Land Development and Environmental Issues

Disaster Risk Reduction and National Land Development

Initiative for Disaster Reduction through ODA: Japan announced its basic policy and concrete actions concerning international cooperation on disaster risk reduction through ODA at the United Nations World Conference on Disaster Reduction held in Kobe in January 2005.

Water Issues

Water and Sanitation Broad Partnership Initiative (WASABI): In Mach 2006, Japan announced its basic policy, and concrete efforts on ODA relating to water and sanitation. In pursuit of sustainable water use and strengthening the perspective of human security, Japan has provided assistance for efforts including (1) promotion of integrated water resources management, (2) provision of safe drinking water and sanitation, (3) support regarding water use for food production and other purposes, (4) water pollution prevention and ecosystem conservation, and (5) mitigation of damage from water-related disasters.

Forests

Asia Forest Partnership (AFP): With the objective of promoting sustainable forest management in Asia and Oceania, this partnership was launched in 2002 between Asian and Oceanic nations (mainly ASEAN), developed countries and international organizations, NGOs, and other entities to cooperate on activities including countermeasures against illegal logging, preventing forest fires, and rehabilitating (reforesting) degraded lands. The two key themes for Phase II starting from 2008 are (1) reducing forest loss and degradation and enhancing forest cover to maintain the provision of forest products and ecosystem services, including mitigation of and adaptation to climate change, watershed and land resource protection, and conserving biological diversity and (2) combating illegal logging and associated trade.

• Global Environmental Problems

Environmental Conservation Initiative for Sustainable Development (EcoISD): This initiative was launched at the 2002 World Summit on Sustainable Development (WSSD). Japan has been implementing international environmental cooperation mainly through ODA in providing assistance for global warming countermeasures, conservation management of nature reserves and other areas, forests, desertification prevention, and natural resource management as high priority issues.

Agricultural Issues

Assistance for New Rice for Africa (NERICA): NERICA projects aim to develop and disseminate high yielding upland rice varieties suitable for semi-arid regions, by cross-breeding African rice (which is resistant to diseases, weeds and drought) with Asian rice (which has high yield potential). Financial assistance is being provided for research and development conducted by Africa Rice Center (AfricaRice) through contributions from the Consultative Group on International Agricultural Research (CGIAR) and

the Japan-UNDP Partnership Fund. Joint research is also underway between AfricaRice and agricultural research institutions in Japan. Moreover, Japan is promoting NERICA rice by, for example, dispatching specialists through JICA to countries such as Uganda and providing assistance for NERICA rice cultivation tests in various African countries.

Specific Assistance Measures

Japan International Cooperation Agency (JICA) Training Courses

JICA provides a variety of training courses relevant to climate change adaptation such as disaster prevention, water resources management, forest resources management, river management, and national land development. JICA will continue to provide these courses in the future.

Development of Strategies on Climate Change

Based on the Kyoto Initiative, JICA has been conducting training courses on measures against global warming since 1997, including a course entitled "Development of Strategies on Climate Change." A total of 123 government officials from developing countries have completed these courses since they were inaugurated. JICA will continue to provide these courses in the future.

Capacity Building for Project Staff regarding Kyoto Mechanism

JICA implemented a training course entitled "Capacity Building for Project Staff regarding Kyoto Mechanism," in order to achieve the goals stipulated in the Kyoto Protocol. The course is provided for capacity building of government project staff, mainly in the areas of gaining an understanding of the rules and the roles to be played by the developing countries provided by the Kyoto Mechanism. This course will continue to be provided to ten personnel from ten countries per year.

Technical Cooperation for Development Planning (Development Survey)

Assistance is being provided for promoting adaptation and mitigating measures for developing countries that have regional conditions vulnerable to the impacts of warming. This is conducted through implementing development survey projects that assist the drafting of these countries' development plans along with the development of systems and policies. One example of adaptation measure assistance is the comprehensive agricultural survey conducted in Cambodia's Prek Thnot River basin, which includes assistance for improving agricultural management technology for boosting agricultural production, developing irrigation facilities, and establishing a flood warning system. These efforts have engendered expectations for mitigating damage in the event that the seasonal fluctuation in rainfall becomes significant due to climate change.

An example of mitigating measure assistance includes development plan surveys for women's assistance in the oasis regions of Mauritania, which are conducted with the objective of presenting a regional development policy for better living and alleviating poverty. The installation of upgraded furnaces and other goods are being promoted, and it is anticipated that the improvement of fuel efficiency in

households will contribute to controlling forest decline and, as a result, lead to curbing superfluous greenhouse gas emissions.

Loan Aid

Financial assistance is being provided for mitigating measures, etc. employed by developing countries through low-interest, long-term yen loans, which are extended as a part of official development assistance.

In particular, Yen Loans for Climate Change Countermeasures have been provided since 2008 as an assistance measure based on the Cool Earth Partnership and with the objective of further actively assisting developing nations that will seriously address climate change with Japan. A special preferred interest rate is applied to these loans, which is offered to partner countries to which Japan can provide yen loans. Specifically, Japan has provided cooperation for climate change countermeasures in Indonesia and Bangladesh until present.

Grant Aid

Financial assistance and transfers of technology are provided for adaptive measures (including forest conservation, afforestation, and flood prevention work) taken by developing countries, through grant aid provided by the government as part of its development assistance.

One specific example is the assistance provided for creating a conservational forest on the coast of Senegal. In 2008, Grant Aid for Environment Programs was constructed as part of the Cool Earth Partnership in order to actively assist developing countries that aim to cut emission while also achieving economic growth. Based on this initiative, combinations of hard (facilities, etc.) and soft (training, etc.) assistance are provided. Further examples include assistance for countermeasures in Bangladesh and for implementing a water supply project in Ethiopia. Currently, additional assistance is being considered for the future that utilizes Japan's sophisticated environmental technologies, such as solar power generation.

Project-Type Technical Cooperation

To improve adaptation technology in developing countries, Japan cooperates in projects related to adaptation measures by participating in project-type technical cooperation. This is conducted by combining the dispatch of experts, acceptance of trainees and provision of equipment. In 2008, joint research was conducted between research institutes in Japan and developing countries to produce results that lead to problem resolution. At the same time, Science and Technology Cooperation on Global Issues was created in an effort to develop the capacity of research institutes in developing nations, whereupon projects such as the Wild Fire and Carbon Management in Peat Forest in Indonesia and the Eco-technological Management of Tuvalu against Sea Level Rise were implemented.

In addition, cooperation is underway in various countries for the preservation and restoration of forests, including forest resource management assistance utilizing satellite information in Indonesia (The Project

for the Support on Forest Resources Management through leveraging Satellite Image Information), as well as a project utilizing ALOS satellite imagery to promote forest conservation and prevent illegal logging in the Brazilian Amazon (Utilization of ALOS Images to Protect Brazilian Amazon Forest and Combat against Illegal Deforestation).

Dispatch of Experts and Acceptance of Trainees

Training has been held in both Japan and Third Countries, in addition to which experts and JOCV members have been sent abroad to train personnel in global warming-related fields (air pollution, waste, energy conservation, forest conservation and afforestation).

Promoting the Co-benefits Approach

Between Japan-China and Japan-Indonesia, joint research and model projects have been conducted using a co-benefits approach that addresses both climate change and environmental pollution, which is a pressing issue in developing nations. These joint activities are based on "the Statement on the Joint Implementation of Co-Benefits Studies and Model Projects by the Ministry of the Environment of Japan and the Ministry of Environmental Protection of the People's Republic of China" and "the Joint Statement on Environmental Protection through Co-Benefits Approach by the Ministry of the Environment of Japan and the State Ministry of Environment, Republic of Indonesia", which were agreed by the Environmental Ministers in December 2007.

JBIC Facility for Asia Cooperation and Environment

The JBIC Facility for Asia Cooperation and Environment was established in April 2008. The facility utilizes funds and the guarantee functions of JBIC with the objective of mobilizing private capital as much as possible in supporting projects that contribute to mitigating measures for climate change. The facility was established in order to assist funding support for energy conservation and new energy projects, as well as to assist funding for individual projects in the aforementioned sectors while guaranteeing financing from private sector financial institutions.

In addition, the Leading Investment to Future Environment Initiative (LIFE), which utilizes JBIC, was announced in March 2009, where it was indicated that a total of US\$5 billion in assistance would be provided over a two-year period for environmental investments implemented by developing countries' governments and the private sector. This initiative centers on developing countries in Asia.

Creation of Trade and Investment Insurance for Preventing Global Warming

Nippon Export and Investment Insurance (NEXI) created Trade and Investment Insurance for Preventing Global Warming as part of the efforts in order to contribute to reducing greenhouse gas emissions through such measures as the transfer of energy conservation technology and new energy technology of Japan. NEXI started accepting underwriting of Trade and Investment Insurance for Preventing Global Warming in January 2009.

The Insurance provides the following specific forms of assistance; (1) promoting use by setting a credit line of ¥2 trillion for a ten-year period, (2) increasing user convenience by applying the Insurance to a wide scope of projects that contribute to climate stabilization through trade-related facilities and equipment, or investments and financing abroad that contribute to reducing greenhouse gasses, (3) establishing an option for 100 percent coverage of country risk (political risk), thereby reducing risk related to project implementation.

CDM/JI Feasibility Studies

In order to discover projects that are highly effective at preserving and enhancing greenhouse gas emission limitation and removal effects and to accumulate knowledge that contributes to creating domestic and international rules for the CDM/JI mechanisms, the Government of Japan is conducting CDM/JI feasibility studies. Specifically, public applications are received from private organizations, NGOs, and other institutions, and applicant surveys are conducted for waste management, biomass use, energy conservation, reusable energy, or other projects that are considered to be highly feasible and will have co-benefits such as decreasing environmental pollution (from 1998).

Promotion of Co-benefits CDM Projects

Co-benefits CDM projects are projects that reduce greenhouse gas emissions in developing countries while also improving environmental pollution problems prominent in developing countries, such as air pollution, water pollution, and waste management issues, in addition to realizing sustainable development. From FY2008 model projects were established as subsidy projects, and assistance is currently being provided for two projects in Malaysia and Thailand. The promotion of co-benefits technology and other measures were noted in the April 2009 The Innovation for Green Economy and Society" and at the May 2009 G8 Environment Ministers' Meeting, and these projects are to be continued in the future.

3.2 Assistance through Regional Frameworks

Asia-Pacific Partnership on Clean Development and Climate (APP)

This is a public-private partnership established in July 2005 with such objectives as addressing the increasing energy demand energy security and the climate change problem of the Asia-Pacific region. Currently, seven countries are participating in the partnership: Japan, Australia, China, India, Republic of Korea, United States, and Canada.

Task forces have been established for the APP in eight sectors, which covers nearly 60 percent of CO2 emissions in participating countries. Each task force is working to develop, spread, and transfer clean and efficient technologies that reduce greenhouse gas emissions and encourage economic growth. Specifically, the task forces are working to reduce greenhouse gas emissions through such efforts as sharing knowledge on technologies that are highly effective at reducting emissions, as well as conducting emission cutting potential analyses.

In particular, the Steel Task Force and Cement Task Force, of which Japan is the chair of both, are conducting such efforts as energy conservation and environmental diagnoses, where specialists are dispatched to China and India to consider improvements and offer advice on issues.

Asia-Pacific Network for Global Change Research (APN)

The APN is an inter-governmental network whose major objectives are promoting research projects on global changes in the Asia-Pacific region, increasing the participation of developing countries in research, and enhancing collaboration between scientific research and policy making. Japan actively supports the activities of the APN, which improves the capacity of researchers by hosting workshops, providing support for the participation of researchers in international research meetings, and training researchers. Key areas subject to project assistance research at the APN include climate as well as changes in atmospheric, terrestrial, and marine domains. In addition, from FY2009 efforts have been made to upgrade and expand the research assistance program focusing on the issue of scientific capacity building for climate change impact and vulnerability assessments in developing countries.

Asia-Pacific Seminar on Climate Change

Much effort has been made to cope with climate change in the Asia-Pacific region. The Ministry of the Environment has been organizing the annual Asia-Pacific Seminar on Climate Change since 1991 with the participation of administrators and experts from countries in the Asia-Pacific region as well as international organizations. The seminar aims to contribute to the promotion of efforts to address climate change in the Asia-Pacific region through the sharing of information, experiences and views concerning the global warming issue in countries in this region.

The eighteenth seminar held in March 2009 was attended by roughly 50 officials and specialists that serve as directors of climate change and development planning in 14 countries and ten organizations. At the seminar an active exchange of views took place on measurable, reportable, and verifiable actions (MRV), greenhouse gas emission data (inventory), the co-benefits approach, and adaptation measures based on scientific knowledge. As a result it was agreed that leadership by advanced nations in cutting emissions as well as proactive actions by developing countries will be necessary in order to cut global emissions overall. The following efforts were also agreed to be necessary.

- The actions of developing countries should be properly evaluated, and a well-understood framework should be constructed, developing a system related to MRV actions for a framework beginning from 2013 as well as creating an inventory.
- The realization of co-benefits (synergistic effects) in mitigating measures and mainstreaming the
 development of adaptation measures is necessary in order to fulfill the development needs of
 developing countries while instituting both mitigating and adaptation measures against climate
 change.

3.3 Assistance through Multilateral Channels

Cool Earth Partnership (contributions through international organizations) Japan-UNDP Joint Framework for Building Partnership to Address Climate Change in Africa

This is an adaptation assistance framework providing US\$92.1 million for about 20 African countries that was established at the Fourth Tokyo International Conference on African Development (TICAD IV) in May 2008 by Japan together with the UNDP, which is a co- organizer for TICAD, based on the Cool Earth Partnership. The Joint Framework includes introduction of a long-term national planning mechanism to address the impacts of climate change, building institutional frameworks to manage climate change risks, and implementation of adaptation measure. Currently UNDP is formulating country specific proposals, by coordinating with each government, towards actual implementation.

Japan-UNDP Partnership Fund

Assistance is currently being provided through the Japan-UNDP Partnership Fund for community-based climate change adaptation in Namibia and Niger (US\$400,000, approved September 2008), enhancing the capacity of the clean development mechanism in Burkina Faso (US\$300,000, approved December 2008), and enhancing the capacity of the clean development mechanism under the Kyoto Protocol in Rwanda (US\$300,000, approved December 2008).

UNV/Japan Trust Fund

Assistance is being provided through the UNV/Japan Trust Fund for Community-based Adaptation in Climate Change in Bolivia, Guatemala, Jamaica, Morocco, Namibia, Niger, and Samoa (US\$1 million, approved January 2009).

ADB (ACEF)

This is a fund established within the Asian Development Bank (ADB) in January 2008 through Japanese contributions in order to assist a response to such issues as climate change in member developing countries (establishment was announced at the 2007 Annual Meeting of the Board of Governors in Kyoto). This fund provides assistance for individual efforts aimed at cutting greenhouse gas emissions by ADB member developing countries through utilizing reusable energy and energy-saving technologies.

Climate Investment Funds (CIF)

These funds were established by Japan, the United States, and the United Kingdom as an assistance measure for efforts tackling the climate change problem in developing countries. Japan has encouraged the funds to ensure as many donor countries as possible, and has pledged to contribute a maximum of US\$1.2 billion. Japan also participates in the fund's administrative committee, thereby actively contributing to the fund's operations.

Climate Change Countermeasures Assistance through the PHRD Fund

Through the Japan Policy and Human Resources Development Fund (PHRD Fund), established in partnership with the World Bank, Japan is contributing to the World Bank's Forest Carbon Partnership Facility (FCPF). The FCPF is a facility that supports pilot projects that enable emission cuts resulting from forest conservation to be transferred into carbon credits. In addition, from 2005 the PHRD has funded future climate forecast training at the Meteorological Research Institute and Japan Agency for Marin-Earth Science and Technology (JAMSTEC). The training is conducted for eight countries in Latin America and incorporates rises in temperature and sea level using the Earth Simulator, a supercomputer.

4. Measures Related to Transfer of Technology

4.1 Government Measures for the Promotion, Facilitation and Financing of the Transfer of Technology

- Asia-Pacific Partnership on Clean Development and Climate (APP) (as previously mentioned)
- Asia-Pacific Seminar on Climate Change (as previously mentioned)
- Japan Kyoto Mechanisms Acceleration Programme (JKAP)

As a flexible international measure for countries to achieve their respective targets in reducing greenhouse gas emissions, and to prevent global warming as well as to promote sustainable development in developing countries, the Kyoto Protocol authorizes the use of the Kyoto Mechanisms which permit the utilization of a portion of the emission cuts of greenhouse gas from other countries.

Taking into account the principle that the Kyoto Mechanisms are supplemental to domestic measures, Japan is primarily utilizing the Clean Development Mechanism (CDM) and Joint Implementation (JI), and is also utilizing the Green Investment Scheme (GIS) a mechanism which links emissions trading to specific environmental measures. (Hereafter these three approaches will be referred to as "CDM/JI, etc.")

As a program to promote CDM/JI cooperation in Japan and host countries, the Ministry of Foreign affairs, the Ministry of Economy, Trade and Industry, the Ministry of the Environment, and related institutions established the Japan Kyoto Mechanisms Acceleration Programme (JKAP). [Related institutions: the Global Environmental Center (GEC), the Institute for Global Environmental Studies(IGES), the Japan Bank for International Cooperation (JBIC), the Japan External Trade Organization(JETRO), the Japan International Cooperation Agency (JICA), the New Energy and Industrial Technology Development Organization (NEDO), Nippon Export and Investment Insurance (NEXI), the Overseas Environmental Cooperation Center (OECC), and Japan Carbon Finance (JCF).]

This program aims to implement a variety of support measures that have previously been implemented by individual institutions in a more effective and user-friendly manner through the JKAP network. The major support projects in this program are as follows.

Building the Capacity of Host Countries

With the objective of development of human resources related to the Kyoto Mechanisms in host countries, JKAP holds a variety of training seminars and workshops for government officials and private business owners in the host countries, supports the development of CDM/JI, etc. project approval systems by the governments of the host countries, and conducts a variety of public information campaigns to promote the implementation of such projects. (2003-)

Provision of Information and Counseling Support

JKAP has created a web page (the Kyoto Mechanisms Information Platform) in order to provide information to private companies in Japan and the host countries that are working on CDM/JI, etc. projects and to the host country governments. The site provides information about the various support measures implemented by the Government of Japan through the JKAP network, the latest developments concerning CDM/JI, etc. projects in the host countries, and the latest information concerning the rules of the Kyoto Mechanisms and debates at CDM board meetings. In addition, individual questions are answers and consultations provided through e-mail. (2004-) (URL: http://www.kyomecha.org/e/index.html)

Climate Technology Initiative (CTI)

New Earth 21 was proposed to the world based on an agreement at the Council of Ministers for Global Environmental Conservation's Houston Summit in 1990. The Technology Renaissance for Environment and Energy (TREE) concept was proposed at the Tokyo Summit in 1993 to establish comprehensive, concrete strategies for New Earth 21. In the same year, a scoping study was carried out to look into the implementation of joint international research and development concerning environmental energy technologies at a conference for promoting the development of environmental energy technology.

Twenty-three IEA/OECD member countries and the EC proposed the establishment of the Climate Technology Initiative (CTI) at the 1st United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change in 1995. The CTI has made a new start as an Implementing Agreement of the IEA in 2003. Japan has played a central role as an establishing member since its launch. The CTI has provided international cooperation such as the dissemination and promotion of technology that contributes to the reduction of greenhouse gases, market promotion of such technology, and promotion of the transfer of innovative technology development ever since its establishment. Specifically, 90 seminars, workshops, and side events were held by March 2009, and participation numbered over 6,000 people.

In addition, the Private Financing Advisory Network (PFAN), a public-private partnership, was launched with the objective of expanding fund procurement opportunities by business developers related to clean energy, reusable energy, and energy streamlining projects and to promote the transfer of technologies to developing and economically transitioning countries. A finance forum is being held with the purpose of building the capacity of business developers and matching investors.

- Asia-Pacific Network for Global Change Research (APN) (as previously mentioned)
- Green Aid Plan (GAP)

In the areas of energy saving and environment, Japan is engaged in efforts to promote the Green Aid Plan (GAP), which aims to enhance the awareness of the governments of Asian countries on environmental measures by engaging in policy dialogues with the partner countries, and to construct systems which reflect the situation of each country. Simultaneously, this project aims to facilitate the dissemination of Japan's environmental and energy saving technologies through which sustainable development may be achieved by developing countries while realizing a harmonious coexistence with the environment.

• Countermeasure Project for Rationalization of International Energy Use

With the aim to promote the establishment and dissemination and to prove the effectiveness of technologies for the effective use of energy (e.g. energy-conserving and oil substitute energy technologies) and countermeasure technologies for use of coal, the Government of Japan implements model projects and such to exploit and transfer Japanese technology and know-how. To date, 68 projects have been implemented in developing countries in the Asia Pacific region.

• Support for the International Tropical Timber Organization (ITTO)

The ITTO conducts such activities as restoring depleted forests, sustainable forest management, and creating standards and indices for countermeasures against illegal logging that hinders sustainable forest management. These efforts are conducted for countries producing tropical timber in order that they may properly and efficiently utilize and conserve tropical forests. Japan provided assistance equaling approximately US\$35.3 million for nearly 140 projects between 2004 and 2008.

• Support for the Food and Agriculture Organization (FAO)

In order to support the activities of the FAO and contribute to the promotion of sustainable forest management in developing countries, Japan has voluntarily contributed to a trust fund to implement 14 projects since 1983 in addition to covering about 20% of the organization's regular budget. Since FY2005 Japan has made voluntary contributions for accurately assessing and analyzing the current situation of forest management in Asian countries. Assistance is being provided for Strengthening Monitoring, Assessment and Reporting (MAR) on Sustainable Forest Management (SFM) in Asia, which was implemented in order to have the results from the aforementioned analyses fed back into forest policy.

• CDM Afforestation Related Projects

The following efforts are being made as infrastructure development that contributes to implementing CDM afforestation projects by private sector businesses, etc.: (1) information collection on developing countries, (2) development of guidance for validation screenings, and (3) development of personnel in charge of planning of CDM afforestation plans.

 Project for Strengthening the Promotional Structure of Sustainable Forest Management in Siberia and the Far East

In regards to forest sink activities conducted under the Kyoto Joint Implementation mechanism, a basic survey was conducted in order to assess technical problems, etc. in implementing projects in Siberia and the Far East.

4.2 Government Support Measures to Develop and Enhance the Capabilities and Technologies of Developing Countries

- Asia-Pacific Network for Global Change Research (APN) (as previously mentioned)
- Criteria and Guidelines for Sustainable Forest Management

ITTO is working on improving the capacity of its member countries, financial and technological support, and promotion of information sharing, in order to achieve its Year 2000 Objective, of "all tropical timber and tropical timber product exports coming from sustainably managed sources by 2000." As a part of this process, the ITTO has created the Criteria and Guidelines for Sustainable Management of Tropical Forests and is introducing them in stages. Since 2004 it has been holding workshops to disseminate the criteria and guidelines in tropical timber producing countries. Japan is providing financial support for the efforts extended by the ITTO.

United Nations Forum on Forests Follow-up Partner Country Experts' Meeting on Forests

International experts' meetings were held three times between 2006 and 2008 in order to support sustainable forest management efforts in developing nations, mainly in Asia. In 2006, the 17th Montréal Process Working Group meeting and the Workshop on Strengthening Monitoring, Assessment, and Reporting (MAR) on Sustainable Forest Management (SFM) in Asia were held in order to consider such items as utilization of criteria and indicators for assessing sustainable forest management. In 2007, the 7th Meeting of the Asia Forest Partnership (AFP) was held in order to promote sustainable forest management in Asia.

SBSTA Workshop

Japan hosted an international workshop under SBSTA in June 2008 to discuss methodological issues, etc. for reducing emissions from deforestation and forest degradation in developing countries (REDD).

Promotion of the Asia Forest Partnership

The Asia Forest Partnership (AFP) is a partnership for Asia-Pacific countries (mostly ASEAN countries), developed nations and international organizations, NGOs, and other entities to cooperate on such activities as countermeasures against illegal logging, forest fire prevention, and the rehabilitation and reforestation of degraded lands. The objective of the AFP is to promote sustainable forest management in the Asia-Pacific region, and it was officially launched in 2002 at the Johannesburg Summit (World Summit on Sustainable Development (WSSD)). The two key themes for Phase II starting from 2008 are (1)

reducing forest loss and degradation and enhancing forest cover to maintain the provision of forest products and ecosystem services, including mitigation of and adaptation to climate change, watershed and land resource protection, and conserving biological diversity and (2) combating illegal logging and associated trade. Japan has been promoting the implementation of projects related to the AFP by hosting the meetings to promote AFP activities and by providing support to workshop on strengthening the AFP.

Support for Afforestation by Private Sector Parties

The Government of Japan has been supporting afforestation activities in developing countries undertaken by Japan's private sector entities such as NGOs through awarding grants for previous studies and providing technical assistance through dispatching experts, and holding international seminars. Since 2005, private sector's efforts have been further assisted through building a network on the web to facilitate exchange of information and coordinate activities among organizations interested in afforestation in developing countries and through giving technical guidance to develop model projects for small-scale afforestation.

Observation of Forestry Statuses Using Satellite Data

Research and development, together with capacity building in developing countries, has been conducted to assess deforestation and forest degradation in developing countries using such means as satellite imagery.

Flood Forecasting, etc. Utilizing Satellite Data

In order to predict floods in regions with poor hydrological information, a flood forecast system (GFAS/IFAS) utilizing information including rainfall amounts observed by artificial satellite is provided on a website via grant aid. The Public Works Research Institute ICHARM is holding workshops on using the system.

4.3 Prevention of Acid Rain

Nitrogen oxide, which is one of the causative substances of acid rain, is considered as a contributer to tropospheric ozone production, one of the factors leading to warming. Thus countermeasures aimed at preventing acid rain contribute to preventing warming. Furthermore, by preventing damage to forests, countermeasures against acid rain contribute to the preservation of forests as sinks for CO2, which is the most widespread greenhouse gas.

Acid Rain Monitoring Network in East Asia

In aim to create a framework for acid rain countermeasures in the entire East Asian region through international cooperation, the Network commenced regular operations in January 2001, following a preparatory phase conducted from April 1998 with the participation of 13 countries: Cambodia, China, Indonesia, Japan, Laos, Malaysia, Mongolia, Myanmar, Philippines, Republic of Korea, Russia, Thailand,

and Vietnam. The aim is to foster a common understanding among the participating countries on the current status of the acid rain issue in East Asia by preparing and evaluating reliable data that can be compared between the countries using a standardized method.

4.4 Prevention of Desertification

The importance of countermeasures to the problem of desertification, the degradation of land in arid regions that are vulnerable to climate change, has been pointed out from the perspective of adaptation to climate change as well as that of mitigating climate change, so as to reduce the accumulation of carbon in arid regions. Japan has traditionally promoted various projects related to addressing desertification through such means as bilateral official development assistance (ODA), including for the conservation of water resources, forest conservation and reforestation, agricultural development, and capacity building. In September 1998, Japan accepted the Convention to Combat Desertification that was adopted in June 1994 and became a party to the Convention, and has been working to support the formulation of national action programs so that developing country parties to the Convention that are affected by desertification can effectively implement the Convention. In addition, as a signatory country, Japan has considered the role of comprehensive desertification prevention measures from the perspective of contributing further to the implementation of the Convention to Combat Desertification, as well as for social and economic aspects.

As part of these efforts, Japan has conducted a pilot study on constructing an early warning system that includes research on assessing and monitoring desertification using desertification indices. The results from the study were announced at the Committee on Science and Technology under the auspices of the Convention to Combat Desertification.

5. Promoting International Cooperation in the Private Sector

Cooperative Activities by Private Organizations

Many of Japan's environmental protection technologies were developed by private corporations, and the role carried out by private corporations in technology transfers, such as direct investments in developing countries, is significant. The Japanese Government, various domestic NGOs, and groups such as the Japan Wildlife Research Center, International Lake Environment Committee, Overseas Environmental Cooperation Center, the Organization for Industrial, Spiritual and Cultural Advancement-International (OISCA-International), Nippon Keidanren, Japan International Volunteer Center, and Nippon International Cooperation for Community Development implement environmental protection projects and are conducting efforts to promote international environment cooperation, including holding symposiums, lectures, and seminars, in addition to assisting environmental conservation activities.

Moreover, NGOs are providing afforestation cooperation in various forms in developing countries, including forestation guidance, dispatching forestation volunteers, and providing environmental education. For instance, the Green Earth Network (GEN), Japan Association for Greening Deserts, Defense of Green Earth Foundation (DGEF), Green Earth Center, International Society for Mangrove

Ecosystems, Action for Mangrove Reforestation, OISCA, International Charcoal Cooperative Association, and other organizations are carrying out important roles in promoting forest and forest industry cooperation in various ways through thorough grassroots level response.

Cooperative Activities of Private Sector Groups

In Japan, many of the existing environmental conservation technologies have been developed by private sector companies. Parallel to this, direct foreign investment by private sector companies to developing countries plays a very significant role in transfer of technologies. In addition, the Government of Japan and Japan's various NGOs (such as the Japan Wildlife Research Center; the International Lake Environment Committee Foundation; the Overseas Environmental Cooperation Center Japan; OISCA; the Federation of Economic Organizations; the Japan International Volunteer Center and the Nippon International Cooperation for Community Development) promote international environmental cooperation by implementing environmental conservation projects, hosting symposiums, lectures, and seminars, and by supporting environmental conservation activities.

NGOs have been affording cooperation for afforestation in various ways, such as through afforestation instruction in developing countries, dispatch of volunteer afforestation workers, and providing environmental education. For example, grassroots level groups, namely, the Green Earth Network; the Japan Association for Greening Deserts; the Defense of Green Earth Foundation; the Green Earth Center; the International Society for Mangrove Ecosystems; the Action for Mangrove Reforestation; OISCA and the International Charcoal Cooperative Association play important roles in providing cooperative assistance to forestry in various ways.

• Support for Private Sector Activities

Support is being provided to environmental conservation projects conducted by private organizations, such as NGOs, via such means as Partnership Grant Aid for Japanese NGO Projects and Grant Assistance for Grassroots Human Security Projects, which are offered by the Ministry of Foreign Affairs, as well as JICA Technical Cooperation for Grassroots Projects.

• Japan Kyoto Mechanisms Acceleration Program (JKAP) (as previously mentioned)

6. Considerations in Undertaking International Cooperative Projects

In pursuing development assistance, it is important to take into account environmental conservation, including elements that might contribute to the mitigation of global warming, in order to promote sustainable development.

• In 1989, the Council of Ministers for Global Environmental Conservation agreed that greater consideration must be given to environmental issues when implementing ODA projects. The ODA Charter, adopted by the Cabinet in 2003, presents addressing global issues, including environmental problems, as one of its priority issues and states that, "environmental conservation and development should be pursued in tandem" as one of the principles of ODA

- implementation. Addressing global issues, including environmental problems, was presented as one of the priority issues in Japan's Medium-term Policy on ODA published in February 2005.
- In order to take the environment into consideration when implementing assistance, the Japan International Cooperation Agency (JICA), one of the ODA implementing organizations, has been enforcing the new JICA Guidelines for Environmental and Social Considerations since April 2004 for technical cooperation projects and preliminary studies of grant aid projects. The then Japan Bank for International Cooperation (JBIC) enforced the revised JBIC Guidelines for Environmental and Social Consideration in October 2003 for yen loan projects. These guidelines were formulated through a highly transparent and open process that reflected proposals from Universities, non-governmental organizations (NGOs). Furthermore, these guidelines are groundbreaking in that they include objection procedures for local people. They also incorporate consideration for both natural environment and social issues, as well as provisions for information disclosure. In concert with the launch of the new JICA on October 1st 2008, efforts are underway to unify the old JICA and JBIC guidelines. A draft is currently being created for new guidelines while acquiring the necessary advice from a committee composed of Universities, NGOs, the private sectors, and related ministries. There are also plans to seek public comments in the future. Discussion regarding the new guidelines is advancing while considering the prompt implementation of operations. There is also a basic need to publicize information at an early stage and further enrich the content of environmental and social considerations.
- Development and Dissemination of "the Manual for Quantitative Evaluation of the Co-Benefits
 Approach to Climate Change Projects". In order to include environmental consideration in
 climate change projects including CDM, "the Manual for Quantitative Evaluation of the CoBenefits Approach to Climate Change Projects" was developed to present methods for
 quantitative evaluation of co-benefits in terms of environmental pollution mitigation.

2012 Reporting²

1. Overview

In December 2009, Japan announced the assistance of approximately USD 15 billion including public and private financing, of which public finance comprises approximately USD 11 billion, for developing countries up to 2012 to address climate change (announced as the "Hatoyama Initiative", hereinafter referred to as the Fast-Start Finance). This Fast-Start Finance aims to assist developing countries, especially those making efforts to reduce GHG emissions as well as those which are vulnerable to the negative impacts of climate change, taking into account the developments in the international negotiations and the state of Japan's reconstruction. Japan has been making utmost effort to play its part of the commitment made by developed countries to provide 30 billion to developing countries in three years from 2010 to 2012 as agreed by the Cancun Agreements. Faced with the Great East Japan Earthquake, an unprecedented disaster last year, Japan is determined to overcome the catastrophe and to continue to faithfully implement the commitment on the Fast-Start Finance to fulfill a positive role in the international community.

Japan's assistance to developing countries is composed of two main types of assistance. One is Official Development Assistance (ODA) such as grant aid, technical assistance, concessional loan and contribution to multilateral funds, which are implemented by relevant ministries and agencies, Japan International Cooperation Agency (JICA) and other institutions. The other includes Other Official Flow (OOF) such as co-financing of the Japan Bank of International Cooperation (JBIC), and private financing catalyzed by the basis of public financing.

Out of approximately USD 15 billion of the Fast-Start Finance announced in December 2009, more than USD 13.2 billion has already been implemented as of 29 February 2012. However, if the Fast-Start Finance is limited to projects or programs based on public financing newly implemented during the period between January 2010 and February 2012, the amount of the implemented assistance would be more than USD 9.6 billion. Taking into account the discussions at the UNFCCC negotiations, the Fast-Start Finance implemented by Japan from January 2010 onward and composed of public financing is explained more in detail as below.

2. Objective of Japan's Active Efforts including Fast-Start Finance

Japan has been carefully implementing a wide variety of assistance in favor of developing countries, in order to move forward in the international negotiations steadily toward the establishment of a fair and effective international framework applicable to all Parties. Considering the priority to be given to developing countries which are vulnerable to adverse impact of climate change as agreed in Cancun Agreements, over 50% of Japan's grant aid against climate change for those countries is devoted in the

² Japan. Japan's Fast-Start Finance for Developing Countries up to 2012 (As of 29 February, 2012), May 2012, 10 pp.

area of adaptation to respond to the needs of vulnerable countries including Africa and LDC. Japan is also willing to carry out the assistance utilizing its advantages such as advanced technologies aiming at achieve global compatibility between economy and environment. This will help promote efforts toward the achievement of low-carbon growth.

Japan announced "Japan's Vision and Actions toward Low-Carbon Growth and a Climate-Resilient World" at COP17 last year and has been working actively to embody it. As one of the concrete efforts, Japan has been formulating "Africa Green Growth Strategy" with African countries and international organization under the framework of Tokyo International Conference on African Development (TICAD), and issued an interim report of the strategy at the TICAD Ministerial Meeting in Morocco in earlier May this year. Likewise, regarding the East Asia area, Japan and Indonesia co-chaired "East Asia Low Carbon Growth Partnership Dialogue" in Tokyo on 15th April this year under the framework of East Asia Summit, and participants reaffirmed the importance of realization of low-carbon growth in the area. Through these embodiments of the vision, Japan is willing to contribute to fighting against climate change by encouraging the achievement of low-carbon growth all over the world.

3. Contents of Japan's Fast-Start Finance implemented as of 29 February 2012

The main components of our assistance which amount to more than USD 9.6 billion as of 29 February 2012 are as follows.

It should be noted that Japan's assistance for developing countries accords importance to establishing a mechanism that not only ensures the effective use of public financing, but also facilitates the mobilization of private financing. Large-scale projects on infrastructure, such as the introduction of facilities with high energy efficiency and the construction of electric power transmission facilities, will require massive investment, and thus leveraging the private financing would be crucially important (this is why Japanese private financing of approximately USD 3 billion had already been mobilized for assistance to developing countries, as of 29 February 2012, though this figure is not counted as the Fast-Start Finance in this report).

(1) Mitigation(other than REDD+): USD 6.69 billion

Assisting developing countries in such areas as promotion of renewable energy including solar energy, wind energy and geothermal, and introduction of facilities with high energy efficiency, to contribute to reducing GHG emissions.

- Projects for introduction of clean energy by solar electricity generation system (24 countries, 127 million)
- Wind energy projects (Egypt, 338 million)
- Geothermal projects (Kenya and Indonesia, 491 million)
- Electric transmission projects(Olkaria to Kisumu in Kenya: 108 million Iringa to Shinyanga in Tanzania: 53 million)

(2) REDD+: USD 578 million

Assisting developing countries to conduct survey on forest resources, formulate forest management plan and facilitate forestation by providing necessary equipments in order to promote sustainable usage and conservation of forests.

- Forest conservation programs (21 countries, 158 million)
- Contribution to UN-REDD (3.2 million)

(3) Adaptation: USD 1.16 billion

Strengthening developing countries' capability to cope with natural disasters caused by climate change, and providing necessary equipment and facilities to take precaution any measures against and to recover from natural disasters including floods and droughts.

Program for the improvement of capabilities to cope with natural disasters caused by climate change (25 countries, 164 million)

- Infrastructure rehabilitation projects for typhoon damage (Philippines, 86 million)
- Technical assistance on climate change prediction (South Africa:1.1 million)
- Capacity building for disaster management in coastal area (Samoa:6.48 million)
- Regional water supply projects (Ethiopia, Kenya, Pakistan, Sudan: 89.98 million)
- Desalination project (Tunisia:8.7 million)

(4) Mitigation and Adaptation: USD 1.20 billion

Assisting developing countries to tackle climate change issues (both Mitigation and Adaptation) by providing contribution to multilateral fund and program loan to address climate change.

- Contribution to Global Environment Facility (GEF) (68 million)
- Contribution to Climate Investment Funds (CIF) (645 million)
- Policy dialogue with African countries(in Tokyo, October 2011)

4. Features of Japan's Fast-Start Finance

(1) Various types of assistance in a wide range of areas

As Japan's Fast-Start Finance, 718 projects have been implemented in as many as 101 countries as of 29 February 2012. Through the Japanese Embassies and JICA's local office stationed in a number of developing countries, the Japanese Government has been developing projects of the Fast-Start Finance in close consultation with the government of developing countries and international organizations in

response to the needs of recipient countries. Japan has been providing assistance through various channels, including grant aid, concessional loan and technical assistance, taking into account local economic situations and content of projects.

(2) Grant Aid prioritizing the area of adaptation

In Japan's Fast-Start Finance, the grant aid has been implemented as follows:

• Mitigation (other than REDD+):331 million (16.7%),

• REDD+: 194 million (9.8%)

• Adaptation: 743million (37.5%)

• Mitigation/Adaptation: 711 million (35.9%)

These figures show that Japan has implemented grant projects, reflecting the needs for adaptation of developing countries, in particularly those of vulnerable countries in relation to adaptation.

(3) Assistance focusing on vulnerable countries

Japan has implemented its assistance to developing countries vulnerable to climate changes as follows (US dollars):

	Total	Mitigation (other than REDD+)	REDD+	Adaptation
Africa	1379	929 million (Grant: 118 million, Loan: 781	98 million (Grant	352 million (Grant Only)
	million	million)	Only)	
LDCs	909 million	325 million (Grant: 117 million, Loan: 206	83 million	501 million (Grant:327 million, Loan:
		million)		174million)
SIDS	58 million	20 million (Grant Only)	11 million (Grant	25 million (Grant Only)
			Only)	

With regard to the grant aid for vulnerable countries, it has been implemented as follow:

• In Africa

Mitigation (other than REDD+): 146 million (24.5%)

REDD+:98 million (16.4%)

Adaptation: 352 million (59.0%)

In LDCs

Mitigation (other than REDD+): 117 million (22.2%)

REDD+: 83 million (15.7%)

Adaptation: 327 million (62.0%)

Over 50% of the total amount of the grant aid implemented in vulnerable countries including Africa and LDCs was allocated into the area of adaptation. This ratio was higher than that of last year.

(4) Use of private finance

In order to further promote climate change action, Japan has also been working on establishing a mechanism to leverage private investment by use of public finance. Co-financing by JBIC with private sector and trade insurance are the examples of utilizing private finance. Private Finance also plays an important role to tackle climate change as its total amount is almost 3 billion dollars as of 29 February 2012, although it is not counted as Japan's Fast-Start Finance in this document.

5. Chanel and access for Japan's Fast-Start Finance

There are mainly 5 types for Japan's Fast-Start Finance; i.e. (1) grant (2) loan (3) technical assistance (4) contribution to international organizations (5) OOF. Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Ministry of Finance, Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries, Ministry of Economy, Trade and Industry, Ministry of the Environment and JICA are implementing agencies of the types (1)-(3). The type of (4) is contributions to the development organizations such as GEF, World Bank, UNDP, which are implementing agencies of this type of assistance. Regarding the type (5), relevant Japanese ministries and JBIC are the main implementing agencies. See the attached list for the detail.

6. Tangible examples of Japan's Fast-Start Finance

Japan's Fast-Start Finance has been effectively implemented based on needs and phase of development of the recipient countries. The following are the typical examples.

(1)Grant Aid in bilateral cooperation

• Prevention of Disaster and Rehabilitation (Adaptation)

In 25 countries, Japan provided financial support for the rehabilitation and maintenance of disaster prevention equipment, recovery measures against natural disasters and water supply by groundwater development, as measures taken for adaptation to climate change, including large scale typhoon or cyclone.

In Samoa, as a part of measures against climate change and disaster prevention in Oceania, Japan provided financial support to introduce meteorological observing equipment and communication systems in meteorological bureau and international airport. Besides, in Solomon Islands, Japan provided financial support to improve shortwave radio network to broadcast emergency news related to natural disaster all over the country. In Honduras, Japan constructed land slide prevention facilities such as catchment wells, ditches, earth removal and earth fill and also introduced earth slide monitoring, warning and escaping systems in high risk areas.

In Morocco, where a large number of victims are caused by natural disaster once in several years, Japan has been making efforts to introduce observation and warning devices in river basins and technical supports for activities related to evacuation, in order to reduce damages caused by flood. In Bhutan, Japan provided financial support for reconstruction of the bridges which were damaged by cyclone and vulnerable bridges to be easily damaged by heavy rain in the future.

Water and Sanitation (Adaptation)

Japan repaired the water supply facilities in the areas which have been suffering from drought caused by climate change. For example, in Ethiopia, Japan constructed and repaired the water supply facilities and provided equipments for reconstructing wells in 10 districts where water supply was extremely poor and underwater development was technically and geologically difficult. In addition, in Sudan Japan improved water supply facilities and implemented plans to supply safe water stably with the residents. Moreover, in Togo, Japan supported the construction of 10 water supply facilities with engine pomp as well as constructed 100 water supply facilities with human-powered pomp and repaired 50 facilities.

• Introduction of solar power plant (Mitigation)

In 24 countries, Japan contributed to stabilizing electricity supply in developing countries while contributing to reducing GHG emissions, by introducing solar power equipments in the public spaces such as school, airport, water plant and reservoir and thus replacing a part of consuming electricity with renewable energy. In some projects, Japan also provided necessary technical training to manage, maintain and control equipment.

Forest Conservation (REDD+)

In order to contribute to encouraging REDD+ efforts and reducing GHG emissions in 22 countries, Japan provided technical support to analyze satellite images and financial support for monitoring systems and related equipment in the following actions; making forest distribution map, preventing excessive logging, taking countermeasures against forest fire and ensuring alternative energy to firewood.

(2) Technical Assistance in bilateral cooperation

Prevention of Disaster and Rehabilitation (Adaptation)

In the Republic of South Africa, Japan provided technical support to enhance the functions of meteorological forecasting system, in order to improve the capability of coping with environmental issues such as climate change. In Mozambique, Japan is making efforts to enhance the adaptation capability to climate change, strengthening the basic capability for taking countermeasures against coastal erosion. In Fiji, Japan strengthened the disaster prevention capacity in the local communities to enhance system which enables the residents to escape appropriately in case of flood.

Water and Sanitation (Adaptation)

In Nigeria, Japan is making efforts to improve local water supply through the capacity building of local staff in charge of water supply and sanitation, in order to better cope with the changes of precipitation pattern caused by climate change. In Burkina Faso, Japan provided technical support to develop, demonstrate water supply and sanitation system which was suitable to that area, as well as to help prepare its introduction.

NAMA(Mitigation)

Japan supported the capacity building to formulate and implement NAMA in Serbia, Vietnam and African countries.

Improvement of Energy Efficiency (Mitigation)

In Papua New Guinea, Japan conducted a survey on the current electricity demand and supply and its forecast, as well as a survey on the fuel replacement (from light diesel oil to natural gas) for thermal power plant, the introduction of the cogeneration system, the improvement of energy efficiency (such as heat quantity, transmission) and enlargement of electric-generating capacity, and thus assisted efforts of PNG to reduce GHG emissions.

Promotion of REDD+ efforts (REDD+)

In Brazil, Japan developed a wide-area assessment technology to evaluate carbon dynamics of various forests in Amazon to conserve functions of forests.

Policy Dialogue(Mitigation and Adaptation)

Japan held policy dialogue with African countries in Tokyo last October inviting negotiators and practitioners from 15 African countries. Japanese and African officials exchanged views on climate change negotiation and concrete cooperation and shared efforts and experience toward the achievement of low-carbon growth. Japan is also planning to hold another policy dialogue on climate change with island countries in Tokyo July this year.

(3) Cooperation with international organization

Support for organizing Adaptation Fund Workshop in Africa, Asia and East Europe (Adaptation)

While the Cancun Agreements adopted at COP16 requested Parties to conduct workshops in each region to inform Parties of the process and requirements of the accreditation of National Implementation Agencies which have a direct access to resources of Adaptation Fund, Japan has provided financial support to hold this workshop in Africa, Asia and East Europe.

Cooperation with UNDP (Adaptation)

In islands states in Oceania and Caribbean Sea, Japan has been providing, in collaboration with UNDP, technical support for managing natural disaster risk and sharing know-how in adaptation to climate change.

• Cooperation with ITTO (Mitigation/Adaptation)

Japan has supported the implementation of ITTO, projects to promote conservation and sustainable management of tropical forests, and appropriate use of tropical forest resources

Replenishment to GEF (Mitigation/Adaptation)

Japan made a contribution of US \$68 million to the 5th replenishment of the Global Environment Facility (GEF), which is a multilateral financial mechanism to support developing countries' efforts to preserve and improve global environment.

Contribution to CIF (Mitigation/Adaptation)

Japan also made a contribution of US\$ 645 million to Clean Technology Fund, which supports projects for reducing GHG emissions, and to Strategic Climate Fund, which supports measures such as adaptation against the adverse effects of climate change in developing countries.

(4) Loan support in bilateral cooperation

 Improvement of energy access through the maintenance of electricity transmission equipment (Mitigation)

Japan has been contributing to reducing GHG emissions by electrification of local areas and the improvement of transmission efficiency, while aiming for a transfer to clean energy. In Kenya, Japan built 140 MW geothermal power plants in Olkaria, and supported Olkaria to Kisumu power transmission construction project to enable renewable energy transmission from Olkaria to Kisumu. In Tanzania, Japan has been improving transmission efficiency by expanding a part of the power transmission from Iringa to Shinyanga, in order to stabilize its electricity supply. In Cameroon, Japan has aimed at enhancement of electric power transmission capacity and dissemination of electricity supply to non-electrificated areas by constructing electric power substations and electrical line as an electric distribution facilities.

• Introduction of wind power plant (Mitigation)

Japan has been constructing 220 MW wind power plant in Gulf of El Zayt, Red Sea coast, Egypt.

Introduction of highly efficient power-saving facilities

In Uzbekistan, Japan introduced highly energy-efficient combined cycle gas turbine to aim at stable electric supply, achieving both emission reduction and economic growth.

(5) Other Official Flow, including co-funding with private sector

 Global action for Reconciling Economic growth and Environmental preservation by JBIC (GREEN) (Mitigation)

JBIC has provided finance needed for the environment-related loans (improving energy efficiency project or renewable energy project) to financial institutions, such as Deniz Bank in Turkey, Corporacion Andina de Fomento in Latin America, BNDES in Brazil and ICICI Bank in India. Through this operation, the funding of JBIC enabled private finance institutions to co-finance, which led to the mobilization of more fund.

2013 Reporting³

1. Overview

In December 2009, Japan announced the assistance of approximately USD 15 billion including public and private financing, of which public finance comprises approximately USD 11 billion, for developing countries up to 2012 to address climate change (hereinafter referred to as the Fast-Start Finance). This Fast-Start Finance aims to assist developing countries, especially those making efforts to reduce GHG emissions as well as those which are vulnerable to the negative impacts of climate change, taking into account the developments in the international negotiations and the state of Japan's reconstruction after the Great East Japan Earthquake, an unprecedented disaster in 2011. Japan has made utmost effort to play its part of the commitment made by developed countries to provide 30 billion to developing countries in three years from 2010 to 2012 as agreed by the Cancun Agreements. Faced with the Great East Japan Earthquake, Japan was determined to overcome the catastrophe and to continue to faithfully implement the commitment on the Fast-Start Finance to fulfill a positive role in the international community.

Japan's assistance to developing countries is composed of two main types of assistance. One is Official Development Assistance (ODA) such as grant aid, technical assistance, concessional loan and contribution to multilateral funds, which are implemented by relevant ministries and agencies, Japan International Cooperation Agency (JICA) and other institutions. The other includes Other Official Flow (OOF) such as co-financing of the Japan Bank of International Cooperation (JBIC), and private financing catalyzed by the basis of public financing.

Out of approximately USD 15 billion of the Fast-Start Finance announced in December 2009, USD 17.6 billion including public and private financing has been implemented as of December 2012. However, if the Fast-Start Finance is limited to projects or programs based on public financing newly implemented during the period between January 2010 and December 2012, the amount of the implemented assistance would be USD 13.5 billion. Taking into account the discussions at the UNFCCC negotiations, the Fast-Start Finance implemented by Japan from January 2010 onward and composed of public financing is explained more in detail as below.

2. Objective of Japan's Active Efforts including Fast-Start Finance

Japan has been carefully implementing a wide variety of assistance in favor of developing countries, in order to move forward in the international negotiations steadily toward the establishment of a fair and effective international framework applicable to all Parties. Considering the priority to be given to

³ Japan (2013). Japan's Fast-Start Finance for Developing Countries up to 2012 (As of December, 2012), May 2013, 12 pp.

developing countries which are vulnerable to adverse impact of climate change as agreed in Cancun Agreements, over 50% of Japan's grant-based assistance against climate change for those countries is devoted in the area of adaptation to respond to the needs of vulnerable countries including Africa, LDC and SIDS. Japan is also willing to carry out the assistance utilizing its advantages such as advanced technologies aiming at achieve global compatibility between economy and environment. This will help promote efforts toward the achievement of low-carbon growth.

As one of the concrete examples, regarding the East Asia area, Japan and Indonesia co-chaired "East Asia Low Carbon Growth Partnership Dialogue" in Tokyo on 15th April in 2012 under the framework of East Asia Summit, and participants reaffirmed the importance of realization of low-carbon growth in the area. Following the First Dialogue, Japan and Cambodia co-chaired the Second East Asia Low Carbon Growth Partnership Dialogue in Tokyo on 18th May in 2013, and participants reiterated the importance of promoting effective low carbon technologies. Through these efforts, Japan is willing to contribute to fighting against climate change by encouraging the achievement of low-carbon growth all over the world.

3. Contents of Japan's Fast-Start Finance implemented as of December 2012

The main components of our assistance which amount to USD 13.5 billion as of December 2012 are as follows.

It should be noted that Japan's assistance for developing countries accords importance to establishing a mechanism that not only ensures the effective use of public financing, but also facilitates the mobilization of private financing. Large-scale projects on infrastructure, such as the introduction of facilities with high energy efficiency and the construction of electric power transmission facilities, will require massive investment, and thus leveraging the private financing would be crucially important (this is why Japanese private financing of over USD 3 billion had been mobilized for assistance to developing countries, as of December 2012, though this figure is not counted as the Fast-Start Finance in this report).

(1) Mitigation: USD 9.99 billion

Assisting developing countries in such areas as promotion of renewable energy including solar energy, wind energy and geothermal, and introduction of facilities with high energy efficiency, to contribute to reducing GHG emissions.

- Projects for introduction of clean energy by solar electricity generation system (24 countries, 130 million)
- Wind power plant projects (Egypt, 338 million)
- Geothermal power plant projects and feasibility studies (13 countries and regions including Kenya, Indonesia and Peru, 979 million)
- Electric transmission projects (Olkaria to Kisumu in Kenya: 108 million, Iringa to Shinyanga in Tanzania: 53 million, Habarana to Veyangoda in Sri Lanka: 83 million)

(2) Adaptation: USD 1.37 billion

Strengthening developing countries' capability to cope with natural disasters caused by climate change, and providing necessary equipment and facilities to take precaution measures against and to recover from natural disasters including floods and droughts.

- Program for the improvement of capabilities to cope with natural disasters caused by climate change (25 countries, 164 million)
- Infrastructure rehabilitation projects for typhoon damage (Philippines, 86 million)
- Project for flood protection and drainage improvement (Cambodia, 30 million)
- Technical assistance on climate change prediction (South Africa: 1.9 million)
- Capacity building for disaster management in coastal area (Samoa: 6.48 million)
- Rural water supply projects (Ethiopia, Kenya, Djibouti, Sudan, Togo and Malawi: 34 million)
- Desalination project (Tunisia: 8.7 million)

(3) Mitigation and Adaptation: USD 2.10 billion

Assisting developing countries to tackle climate change issues (both Mitigation and Adaptation) by providing contribution to multilateral fund and program loan to address climate change.

- Contribution to Global Environment Facility (GEF) (96 million)
- Contribution to Climate Investment Funds (CIF) (967 million)
- Climate Change Program Loan (Indonesia and Viet Nam, 410 million)
- Policy dialogue with African countries (in Tokyo, October 2011) and SIDS countries (in Tokyo, July 2012) Cf.) REDD+: USD 723 million Assisting developing countries to conduct survey on forest resources, formulate forest management plan and facilitate forestation by providing necessary equipments in order to promote sustainable usage and conservation of forests.
- Forest conservation programs (21 countries, 158 million)
- Contribution to UN-REDD (3.2 million)

4. Features of Japan's Fast-Start Finance

(1) Various types of assistance in a wide range of areas

As Japan's Fast-Start Finance, 952 projects have been implemented in as many as 114 countries as of December 2012. Through the Japanese Embassies and JICA's local office stationed in a number of developing countries, the Japanese Government has been developing projects of the Fast-Start Finance

in close consultation with the government of developing countries and international organizations in response to the needs of recipient countries. Japan has been providing assistance through various channels, including grant aid, concessional loan and technical assistance, taking into account local economic situations and content of projects.

(2) Grant-based assistance prioritizing the area of adaptation

In Japan's Fast-Start Finance, the grant-based assistance including grant aid, technical assistance and contribution to multilateral funds has been implemented as follows:

• Mitigation: 600 million (23.0%)

• Adaptation: 876 million (33.6%)

• Mitigation/Adaptation: 1,130 million (43.4%)

• Cf.) REDD+: 214 million (8.2%)

These figures show that Japan has implemented grant projects, reflecting the needs for adaptation of developing countries, in particularly those of vulnerable countries in relation to adaptation.

(3) Assistance focusing on vulnerable countries

Japan has implemented its assistance to developing countries vulnerable to climate changes as follows (US dollars):

-	Total	Mitigation	Adaptation	Mitigation/Adaptation	Cf. REDD+
Vulnerable countries (total)	2,101 million	1,432 million	644 million	25 million	142 million
Africa	1,585 million	1,186 million	385 million	13 million	99 million
LDCs	927 million	412 million	500 million	15 million	89 million
SIDS	118 million	87 million	26 million	5 million	11 million

With regard to the grant-based assistance including grant aid, technical assistance and contribution to multilateral funds for vulnerable countries, it has been implemented as follow:

• In vulnerable countries (total)

O Mitigation: 344 million (39.3%)

Adaptation: 506 million (57.8%)

Mitigation/Adaptation: 25 million (2.9%)

Cf.) REDD+: 142 million (16.2%)

In Africa

o Mitigation: 254 million (39.0%)

Adaptation: 384 million (59.0%)

Mitigation/Adaptation: 13 million (2.0%)

o Cf.) REDD+: 99 million (15.2%)

In LDCs

Mitigation: 202 million (34.8%)

Adaptation: 362 million (62.4%)

Mitigation/Adaptation: 15 million (2.6%)

o Cf.) REDD+: 89 million (15.3%)

In SIDS

Mitigation: 32 million (50.8%)

Adaptation: 26 million (41.3%)

Mitigation/Adaptation: 5 million (7.9%)

o Cf.) REDD+: 11 million (17.5%)

57.8% of the total amount of the grant-based assistance implemented in vulnerable countries including Africa, LDCs and SIDS was allocated into the area of adaptation.

5. Use of private finance

In order to further promote climate change action, Japan has also been working on establishing a mechanism to leverage private investment by use of public finance. Co-financing by JBIC with private sector and trade insurance are the examples of utilizing private finance. Private Finance also plays an important role to tackle climate change as its total amount is over 3 billion dollars as of December 2012, although it is not counted as Japan's Fast-Start Finance in this document.

6. Chanel and access for Japan's Fast-Start Finance

There are mainly 5 types for Japan's Fast-Start Finance; i.e. (1) grant aid (2) loan (3) technical assistance (4) contribution to international organizations (5) OOF and others. Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries, Ministry of Economy, Trade and Industry, Ministry of the Environment, Ministry of Land, Infrastructure, Transport and Tourism and JICA are implementing agencies of the types (1)-(3). The type of (4) is contributions to the development organizations or multilateral funds such as GEF, CIF, UNDP, UNEP, WFP and ITTO, which are implementing agencies of this type of assistance. Regarding the type (5), relevant Japanese ministries and JBIC are the main implementing agencies.

7. Tangible examples of Japan's Fast-Start Finance

Japan's Fast-Start Finance has been effectively implemented based on needs and phase of development of the recipient countries. The following are the typical examples. (This list shows concisely the type of support such as grant/loan, countries and area, category, name of project, date, amount of money and channel.)

(1) Grant Aid in bilateral cooperation

Prevention of Disaster and Rehabilitation (Adaptation)

In 25 countries, Japan provided financial support for the rehabilitation and maintenance of disaster prevention equipment, recovery measures against natural disasters and water supply by groundwater development, as measures taken for adaptation to climate change, including large scale typhoon or cyclone.

In Samoa, as a part of measures against climate change and disaster prevention in Oceania, Japan provided financial support to introduce meteorological observing equipment and communication systems in meteorological bureau and international airport. Besides, in Solomon Islands, Japan provided financial support to improve shortwave radio network to broadcast emergency news related to natural disaster all over the country. In Honduras, Japan constructed land slide prevention facilities such as catchment wells, ditches, earth removal and earth fill and also introduced earth slide monitoring, warning and escaping systems in high risk areas.

In Morocco, where a large number of victims are caused by natural disaster once in several years, Japan has been making efforts to introduce observation and warning devices in river basins and technical supports for activities related to evacuation, in order to reduce damages caused by flood. In Bhutan, Japan provided financial support for reconstruction of the bridges which were damaged by cyclone and vulnerable bridges to be easily damaged by heavy rain in the future.

Water and Sanitation (Adaptation)

Japan repaired the water supply facilities in the areas which have been suffering from drought caused by climate change. For example, in Ethiopia, Japan constructed and repaired the water supply facilities and provided equipments for reconstructing wells in 10 districts where water supply was extremely poor and underwater development was technically and geologically difficult. In addition, in Sudan Japan improved water supply facilities and implemented plans to supply safe water stably with the residents. Moreover, in Togo, Japan supported the construction of 10 water supply facilities with engine pomp as well as constructed 100 water supply facilities with human-powered pomp and repaired 50 facilities.

Introduction of solar power plant (Mitigation)

In 24 countries, Japan contributed to stabilizing electricity supply in developing countries while contributing to reducing GHG emissions, by introducing solar power equipments in the public spaces such as school, airport, water plant and reservoir and thus replacing a part of consuming electricity with

renewable energy. In some projects, Japan also provided necessary technical training to manage, maintain and control equipment.

Forest Conservation (Mitigation/REDD+)

In order to contribute to encouraging REDD+ efforts and reducing GHG emissions in 21 countries, Japan provided technical support to analyze satellite images and financial support for monitoring systems and related equipment in the following actions; making forest distribution map, preventing excessive logging, taking countermeasures against forest fire and ensuring alternative energy to firewood.

(2) Loan support in bilateral cooperation

• Improvement of energy access through the maintenance of electricity transmission equipment (Mitigation)

Japan has been contributing to reducing GHG emissions by electrification of local areas and the improvement of transmission efficiency, while aiming for a transfer to clean energy. In Kenya, Japan built 140 MW geothermal power plants in Olkaria, and supported Olkaria to Kisumu power transmission construction project to enable renewable energy transmission from Olkaria to Kisumu. In Tanzania, Japan has been improving transmission efficiency by expanding a part of the power transmission from Iringa to Shinyanga, in order to stabilize its electricity supply. In Cameroon, Japan has aimed at enhancement of electric power transmission capacity and dissemination of electricity supply to non-electrificated areas by constructing electric power substations and electrical line as an electric distribution facilities.

• Introduction of wind power plant (Mitigation)

Japan has been constructing 220 MW wind power plant in Gulf of El Zayt, Red Sea coast, Egypt.

Introduction of highly efficient power-saving facilities (Mitigation)

In Uzbekistan, Japan introduced highly energy-efficient combined cycle gas turbine to aim at stable electric supply, achieving both emission reduction and economic growth.

Climate Change Program Loan (Mitigation/Adaptation)

Japan's loan aid is implemented by JICA and one of its characteristic programs is Climate Change Program Loan (CCPL). It helps to develop the multi-year national climate change policy of developing countries, which is called the "policy matrix", based on policy dialogues and supports the activities of private sector to implement those policies. In the process, Japan flexibly coordinates various ODA instruments such as loan aid or technical cooperation. Japan revises the policy matrix by doing monitoring and evaluation every year, and then considers the second and subsequent phase of program loan. Japan has already signed CCPL agreements with Indonesia and Vietnam, and is now considering introducing it in other countries.

(3) Technical Assistance in bilateral cooperation

Prevention of Disaster and Rehabilitation (Adaptation)

In the Republic of South Africa, Japan provided technical support to enhance the functions of meteorological forecasting system, in order to improve the capability of coping with environmental issues such as climate change. In Mozambique, Japan is making efforts to enhance the adaptation capability to climate change, strengthening the basic capability for taking countermeasures against coastal erosion. In Fiji, Japan strengthened the disaster prevention capacity in the local communities to enhance system which enables the residents to escape appropriately in case of flood.

Water and Sanitation (Adaptation)

In Nigeria, Japan is making efforts to improve local water supply through the capacity building of local staff in charge of water supply and sanitation, in order to better cope with the changes of precipitation pattern caused by climate change. In Burkina Faso, Japan provided technical support to develop, demonstrate water supply and sanitation system which was suitable to that area, as well as to help prepare its introduction.

NAMA(Mitigation)

Japan supported the capacity building to formulate and implement NAMA in Serbia, Asian countries including Vietnam and African countries.

• Improvement of Energy Efficiency (Mitigation)

In Papua New Guinea, Japan conducted a survey on the current electricity demand and supply and its forecast, as well as a survey on the fuel replacement (from light diesel oil to natural gas) for thermal power plant, the introduction of the cogeneration system, the improvement of energy efficiency (such as heat quantity, transmission) and enlargement of electric-generating capacity, and thus assisted efforts of PNG to reduce GHG emissions.

Promotion of REDD+ efforts (Mitigation/REDD+)

In Brazil, Japan developed a wide-area assessment technology to evaluate carbon dynamics of various forests in Amazon to conserve functions of forests.

Policy Dialogue (Mitigation/Adaptation)

Japan held policy dialogue with African countries in Tokyo in October, 2011, inviting negotiators and practitioners from 15 African countries. Japanese and African officials exchanged views on climate change negotiation and concrete cooperation and shared efforts and experience toward the achievement of low-carbon growth. Following the dialogue with African countries, Japan held policy dialogue with SIDS countries in Tokyo in July, 2012, inviting negotiators and practitioners from 21

countries from SIDS countries. Japan is also planning to hold policy dialogue on climate change with Asian developing countries in Tokyo in summer this year.

(4) Cooperation with international organization

Support for organizing Adaptation Fund Workshop in Africa, Asia and East Europe (Adaptation)

While the Cancun Agreements adopted at COP16 requested Parties to conduct workshops in each region to inform Parties of the process and requirements of the accreditation of National Implementation Agencies which have a direct access to resources of Adaptation Fund, Japan has provided financial support to hold this workshop in Africa, Asia and East Europe.

Cooperation with UNDP (Adaptation)

In islands states in Oceania and Caribbean Sea, Japan has been providing, in collaboration with UNDP, technical support for managing natural disaster risk and sharing know-how in adaptation to climate change.

Cooperation with ITTO (Mitigation/Adaptation)

Japan has supported the implementation of ITTO projects to promote conservation and sustainable management of tropical forests, and appropriate use of tropical forest resources

Replenishment to GEF (Mitigation/Adaptation)

Japan made a contribution of US \$96 million to the 5th replenishment of the Global Environment Facility (GEF), which is a multilateral financial mechanism to support developing countries' efforts to preserve and improve global environment.

Contribution to CIF (Mitigation/Adaptation)

Japan also made a contribution of US\$ 967 million to Clean Technology Fund, which supports projects for reducing GHG emissions, and to Strategic Climate Fund, which supports measures such as adaptation against the adverse effects of climate change in developing countries.

(5) Other Official Flow, including co-funding with private sector

 Global action for Reconciling Economic growth and Environmental preservation by JBIC (GREEN) (Mitigation)

In April 2010, JBIC launched a new operation named 'GREEN' (Global action for Reconciling Economic growth and Environmental preservation) of which primary purpose is to support projects with favorable impact on the preservation of the global environment. Under the 'GREEN' operation, JBIC utilizes its untied facility (loans and guarantees) and equity participation while mobilizing private funds.

<Features>

In every project under the 'GREEN' operation, JBIC conducts its own accounting measures named 'J-MRV Guidelines' for reduction impact of GHG emission. It is based on the idea that such accounting makes borrowers strongly aware of their contribution to the preservation of the global environment through the relevant projects.

<Examples>

JBIC has provided finance needed for the environment-related loans (improving energy efficiency project or renewable energy project) to financial institutions, such as Deniz Bank in Turkey, Corporacion Andina de Fomento in Latin America, BNDES in Brazil and ICICI Bank in India. Through this operation, the funding of JBIC enabled private finance institutions to co-finance, which led to the mobilization of more fund.